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Fort Sill Indian School opened as a Quaker institution in 1871, on
a site about one mile north of the present school, It occupiled a single
frame bullding that was destroyed by fire in 1885, The school itself
had closed some years before for lack of interest. The site is now clear
of all buildings. '

In 1891 the school was re-opened, at its present location, again in
frame buildings, However, a two-story stone building was built later
that same year, A boys dormitory, alsoc of stone, was built two years
later, The girls dormitory was built in 1904, followed the next year by
an employees' e;nb, the last of the old style stone buildings,

Construction of an auditorium/gymnasium in 1956 heralded the start
of work on a modern school campus, A classroom building was erected in
1939, dormitories in 1940, 1941, and 1951. By 1940 the school served
Grades 1-12, In 1960 Grades 1-6 were dropped and in 1964 Grades 7-8,
Modern dormitories have been added and, but for Building 309, virtually
all the major old buildings have now been razed,

Building 309 was put under contract on June 24, 1904, A completion

date of December 15, 1904, was called for, The cost was to be $9951,

The building was 40 x 62 feet in size with two 12-foot-high floors over a
full basement and topped by an attic, Walls were of native limestone,
Floors, partitions and roof framing were of wood, Roof itself was of
interlocking painted metal shingles, Unlike the school's other buildings
at the time, the girls dormitory had indoor plumbing, steam heat, and
electric lighting.

The basement contained the bath facilities, a playroom, the boiler
room, On the first floor were two large dormitory rooms, a sitting room,
and quarters for the matron, The second floor, supervised by an assistant
matron, contained two large dormitory rooms for the older girls, The
attic was used for storage only,

The interior of the dormitory was severely damaged by fire on
January 5, 1907, Bids for materials to repair the damage amounted to
more than $2300, In 1917 a contract for $1357 was awarded for construction
of sleeping porches of wood across both floors on the back (east) side of
the dormitory, By 1920 a one-story, 27 x 32-foot bath annex had also
been added to the east face, On the front, meanwhile, an open, roofed
porch had been constructed, The last significant change came in 1930 -
the addition of a two-story-plus-basement section on the north,

Numerous minor changes were made in later years, The sleeping
porches were rebuilt, the front porch roof removed, the bath annex inte-
rior remodeled, In 1957 the dormer windows were removed, The building
was vacated in 1964, Utilities were disconnected, the salvage of usable
fixtures and preliminary demolition work begun, Then later that year
preservationist pressure brought an end to the demolition,. Windows were
boarded up, the bullding enclosed in a protective chain link fence, Today
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

With but a single break, Fort Sill Indian School has served the
Plains tribves (primarily) for over a century, It was established in
1871, only two years after 1ts namesake neighbor, Fort Sill, Closed
through the 1880s, it was re-opened in 1891 and is still operating
today,

The area immediately surrounding the school 1s an extremely
important one historically, Fort Sill, through its long and illustrious
career, has concerned itself primarily with the needs of the white man ,..
providing protection first from the various hostile tribves, then, with
an increasingly sophisticated weaponry arsenal, from a variety of hostlle
foreign enemies, The Fort 3ill Indian School area, on the other hand,
has met -- or at least attempted to meet -~ strictly Indian needs ,,.
political and economic ..., medical and spiritual ,.,. and educational,

Here Lawrie Tatum, the first Quaker Indian agent, came in 1869,
Here, in 1871, he opened the first Quaker Indian school, Here, too, was
developed the Fort Sill Indian Sub-Agency, an Indian hospital (still
operating), and a number of licensed Indian trading posts (including
the well known Red Store), along with the supporting community that
surrounded these agencies and institutions, For a time, therefore, it
was thought that perhaps this entire non-military area of some 1,000
acres might be included in a Historic District for which National
Register status would be sought, However, since so little of a physical
nature remains of this entire complex, the district idea has been re-
jected in favor of this nomination for a single building of the Indian
School,

Building 309, though it dates only from 1904, is quite well pre-
served, Too, it is the only anywhere-near-original structure of the
complex that remains; the rest of the school's physical plant is
relatively new. Similarly, the Fort Sill Indian Hospital immediately
to the north has been routinely upgraded over the years to the extent
that it is today a thoroughly modern facility, And, finally, the Sub-
Agency building, the Cox, Red, and Paschal stores, the Addison Hotel,
the Methodist Mission Church, the Doctor‘'s House and other residences
and business establlishments in the area have long since disappeared
from the now vacant field lying north of the hospital,
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No, 7. Description
Fort Sill Indian School
the masonry walls remain remarkably sound, but the roof, interiors, and

framing are in poor condition and will, say the experts, continue to
deteriorate increasingly, if preservation work is not underiaken soon,
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No. 8. Significance
Fort Sill Indian School

For these reasons, then, the decision has been made to ask for
Natlonal Register recognition for Building 309 alone, Still handsome, if
no longer used, it is an authentic part of the school's past, By pre-
serving it, it is hoped, the historic significance of the area immediately
surrounding it -~ its buildings and what took place in them -- can be
recognized and thus also memorialized,

The Medicine Lodge Treaty of 1867, ratified by the Congress the
following year, assigned lands to the Southern Plains tribes, provided for
the establishment of agencies and of schools for children 6 to 16, Fort
Si11 was established on Kiowa-Comanche lands in 1869. An agency was opened
for the Comanches, On February 20, 1871, the Fort Sill Boarding School
opened, under Quaker supervision, The Comanches showed little interest in
education, however, and the school closed in 1878, But it was reopened in
1891, in a few frame buildings, a mile south of the original site. A
two-story stone bullding was built later that year, Two years later a
boys' dormitory was built. The school has remained in operation from 1891
down to the present day,
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